
State of Arkansas Department of Human Services

710-24-0013

Attachment B

Written Questions

Quest

ion ID

Reference (page number, section 

number, paragraph)

Specific Language Question Answers

1
Is there an estimated procurement timeline y ou 

would be able to prov ide f or the Core MMIS and 

DSS serv ices?

Not Applicable

2 Is there an anticipated contract v alue f or this 

Pharmacy  Sy stem RFP?

Not Applicable

3 General RFP question What is AR's annual paper claim volume? Zero (0) - AR does not accept paper claims for Pharmacy services

4 General RFP question How many calls on average does the call center 

receive each month for 2023?

3,653 average per month in 2023

5

General RFP question Please provide the average number of prior 

authorizations, appeals, and grievances per month 

for 2023?

Average of 5,390 manual PAs per month so far in 2023. Official 

administrative appeals are handled by DHS. Reconsideration of 

denials that come back within thirty (30) days are also managed by 

DHS.

6 Page 6, Attachment G, DR22 The attachment lists question DR21 and DR23. Is 

DR22  intentially omitted? 

Yes, DR22 was included with another requirement.

7 Page 12, Attachment G, HD12 The attachment lists question HD11 and HD13. Is 

HD12  intentially omitted? 

Yes, HD12 was included with another requirement.

8 General RFP question Does Attachment G count towards the 200 and 

150 page limit?

No

9

Attachment G, Line 439 DUR81 Vendor shall maintain the lock-in client and prov ider list and notif y  

the State of  any  changes. Vendor shall deliv er a monthly  report 

to the State listing all clients who will begin the lock-in program in 

the f ollowing month.

Can DHS provide the number of clients that are 

locked in?

June 2023 reported a total of 116  lock-in clients.

10

 Attachment G, Line 439 DUR81 Vendor shall maintain the lock-in client and prov ider list and notif y  

the State of  any  changes. Vendor shall deliv er a monthly  report 

to the State listing all clients who will begin the lock-in program in 

the f ollowing month.

Can DHS provide the average number of new lock-

in clients per month?

For the last 12 months, there have been no more than one (1) new 

lock-in member per month.

11

 Attachment G, Line 456 DUR98 Vendor shall establish a RDUR Lock-in rev iew team to be staf f ed 

by  health prof essionals, who will rev iew each lock-in candidate 

prof ile recommended f or the lock-in program.  Lock-In Rev iew 

Team must be established within the f irst sixty  calendar day s 

f rom go liv e.

Is the lock-in review team mandatory staff in 

addition to the key personnel listed in Attachment 

A “Key Personnel Requirements”?

No, this team will consist of key personnel and other staff assigned 

by the State.

12

Attachment G, Line 456 DUR98 Vendor shall establish a RDUR Lock-in rev iew team to be staf f ed 

by  health prof essionals, who will rev iew each lock-in candidate 

prof ile recommended f or the lock-in program.  Lock-In Rev iew 

Team must be established within the f irst sixty  calendar day s 

f rom go liv e.

Does DHS have specific qualification requirements 

for the lock-in review team?

Not outside of other staffing requirements. 

13

Attachment G, Line 464 DUR106 Vendor shall coordinate the reconsideration rev iew by  a team 

comprised of :

1. Medicaid Pharmacy  Program Manager

2. Vendor's appointed Medical Director

3. A pharmacist, employ ed by  State, who is not a member of  the 

RDUR lock-in team

Please clarify if the Medicaid Pharmacy Program 

Manager is expected to be a vendor or state staff 

member.

This is a State staff member position.

14

Attachment G, Line 464 DUR106 Vendor shall coordinate the reconsideration rev iew by  a team 

comprised of :

1. Medicaid Pharmacy  Program Manager

2. Vendor's appointed Medical Director

3. A pharmacist, employ ed by  State, who is not a member of  the 

RDUR lock-in team

Can DHS provide the average number of lock-in 

reconsiderations per month? 

For the last 12 months, during annual reviews, there has been an 

average of nine (9) reconsideration reviews per month, with a low of 

3 and a high of 18.

15 Section 1.3 Ty pe of  Contract The anticipated start date f or this contract is June 1, 2024 Can DHS state provide the anticipated go-live 

date?

The State will not provide this information.

16

Attachment E, Cost proposal: Tab 

DDI

N/A How many months of implementation should 

bidders plan and cost for (e.g., how long is the 

DDI period for phase 1 and 2), so DHS has an 

apple to apples comparison?

The State will not provide this information.

17

Attach P - T and C, p. 3, Procdue 

on Expiration or Termination

Assign to the Department in the manner and to the extent directed 

by  the Department representativ e all of  the right, title and interest 

of  the Contractor in the orders or subcontracts so terminated. 

Please confirm this does not apply to Contractor's 

pre-existing IP and work that is performed across 

our book of business (i.e. not created specifically 

for the State). 

See the bullet point immediately preceding: Terminate all orders and 

subcontracts to the extend that they related to the performance of 

work terminated by the Notice of Termination. The "orders and 

subcontracts so terminated" references only those "to the extent 

they relate to the performance of work" under the contracted 

services.

18

Attach P - T and C, p. 5, 

Inspection of  Work Perf ormed

The Contractor agrees that all subcontracts shall adhere to 

Department policies.

Will Arkansas provide us with a coy of Deparment 

policies?

DHS policies relevant to this solicitation and services not already 

provided, may be provided upon request, and also found at 

https://humanservices.arkansas.gov/dhs-policies/

19

Attach P - T and C, p. 6, 

Indemnif ication

The Contractor shall agree to hold the Department harmless and 

to indemnif y  the Departmentf or any  additional costs of  

alternativ ely  accomplishing the goals of  the contract…

Can you expand on what "any additional costs of 

alternatively accomplishing the goals of the 

contract" refers to? 

DHS cannot agree by law to indemnify Contractor. Amendments to 

the contracts are based upon material changes as set forth in 

procurement law. 

20

Attach P - T and C, p. 6, 

Department Property

Any  applications sof tware dev eloped by  the Contractor in the 

perf ormance of  the serv ices under this contract must become the 

property  of  the State of  Arkansas at no additional cost. Any  

existing sof tware applications owned by  the Contractor and used 

in the perf ormance of  the serv ices under this contract must be 

granted to the State of  Arkansas at no additional cost, subject to 

customary  conf identiality  and other license terms and conditions.

Please confirm this does not apply to software 

that is created for the benefit of Contractor's 

book of business (i.e. not created specifically for 

the State). 

This provision exclusively references "software developed by the 

Contractor in the performance of the services under this Contract." 

Anything developed for the state of Arkansas under this Contract 

will become the property of the state. 

21

Attach P - T and C, p. 8, 

Technology  Access

(the entire section) Please confirm this would not apply to the 

Contractor since the RFP is not for procuring a 

technology product or development of such a 

product.

This section of the T and C attachment mirrors section 1.26 of the 

RFP. This statutory requirement applies when there is a techonology 

product is procured for developed specifically for the state. 

27

General Question N/A Please describe how a respondent should take 

exceptions to prov isions of  the RFP and any  of  

the Attachments.  Does the State desire a redline 

document with explanation / suggested language 

or prepare separate separate document with 

proposed changes / explanation.  

Any exception taken to non mandatory requirments must be detailed 

in the designated section of the technical response packet.  Please 

See Addendum 1: Attachment D Revised Techincal Response 

Packet.  

28

General Question The State has posted a State Specif ic Supplemental Rebate 

Agreement with a CMS approv al date as of  8/18/2016 on the 

State's website

Will the State please clarif y  if  the State currently  

has supplemental rebate agreements contracted 

through both the National Medicaid Pooling 

Initiativ e (NMPI) and through their State Specif ic 

Supplemental Rebate Agreement?

The State currently only uses NMPI.

29

General Question The State currently  has a generic upper limits rate document 

posted to the MagellanRx.com website f or Arkansas 

(https://ar.magellanrx.com/prov ider-documents) : which was last 

updated on 6/13/2019. The document is not cav eated with the 

statement ‘f or historical ref erence only ’ as other documents are 

on this site.

There is a generic upper limits rate document that 

is posted to the website: 

https://ar.magellanrx.com/prov ider-documents 

(magellanrx.com website f or AR), which was last 

updated on 6/13/2019 (the document is not 

cav eated with the statement ‘f or historical 

ref erence only ’ as other documents are - is this 

document (and associated rates) still in place, or 

is there an updated document? Also,  is this the 

extent of  the MAC list or does the MAC apply  to 

other agents? Additionally , is this an actual 

acquisition surv ey  based cost MAC or is this a 

compendia based MAC? thank y ou

The 6/13/2019 document is not being updated on a regular basis.  A 

regularly updated capped upper limit list is posted on the DHS-

approved Vendor's website.  MACs do apply to other agents. The 

Vendor shall work with DHS to review drugs which may need a MAC 

or CAP, especially if there is no NADAC. The Vendor will research, 

with an approved method,  for eligible drugs for MAC or CAP with 

DHS and Vendor will assist with any pharmacy MAC or CAP appeals.

30 General Question NA Is any  of  the work that is in scope under a 

Collectiv e Bargaining Agreement?

No.

31
Page 16, RFP Section 1.32 

Schedule of  Ev ents, Exhibit 1: 

Solicitation Schedule

Contract Start Date (Subject to State and CMS Approv al) June 1, 

2024

Does the Contract Start date of  June 1, 2024 

indicate the start of  the Project Phase I or Go-

Liv e date?

This is the anticipated Contract date

32

Page 53, RFP Section 3.1 RFP 

Contents, Exhibit 5: Attachment 

Listing

Attachment F--Bidders’ Library --This is a collection of  f iles that 

Respondents should ref erence and rev iew to get a better 

understanding of  what is expected by  the RFP

The bidders library  has the “2021 Annual 

Statistical Report” howev er can the state please 

prov ide more recent and specif ic statistical data 

on the: # of  FFS Claims and MCO Encounters, 

the Claims Paid Dollars, # of  PAs by  mode and 

determination (automated, electronic, manual, 

f ax, telephone), # of  eRx transactions, # of  

Retrospectiv e DUR interv entions and f requency , 

# of  Retrospectiv e DUR letters and f requency , # 

Rebate Inv oices per Quarter per Rebate 

Program, Call Center v olumes, and the number 

of  FTEs by  role and/or f unction currently  

supporting the program?

Yes, the 2022 Annual Statistical Report has just been published: 

https://humanservices.arkansas.gov/data-reports/statistical-reports/

33

Page 20, RFP Section 2.4 Scope 

of  Work, The f ollowing Pharmacy  

Solution Functions must be 

prov ided by  the Vendor:

5. Rate Setting according to current pricing methodologies Does the State's current pricing methodologies 

include a State Maximum Allowable Cost (SMAC) 

calculation?

Yes, please refer to Attachment G, requirement SM23

34

Page 7, RFP Section 1.7 

Def inition of  Terms, L. "Business 

Day "

Attachment G, CM24, Contract 

Management-Sy stem Compliance

Attachment G, HD7, Help Desk-

Staf f ing Management

“Business Day ” means Monday  through Friday , 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 

p.m. Central Time Monday  through Friday , excluding 10 State 

Holiday s. 

Vendor shall meet the sy stem response time requirements listed 

below. Response time must be measured during normal working 

hours, which are 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Central Standard Time 

(CST), Monday  through Friday , CST except f or State observ ed 

holiday s.

Vendor shall staf f  and maintain a Call Center sy stem to handle 

incoming and outbound call v olume between the hours of  8:00 

a.m. to 5:00 p.m. CT, Monday  through Friday , excluding State 

holiday s...

Could the state please clarif y  the expected 

timef rames f or Business Day , Normal Working 

Hours, and Call Center/Help Desk Hours?  

8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

35

Pages 59-60 RFP Section 4.5B 

Statement of  Liability  

A.       The Contractor’s liability  f or damages  to the State shall be 

limited to the v alue of  the Contract or $5,000,000, whichev er is 

higher. The f oregoing limitation of  liability  shall not apply  to claims 

f or inf ringement of  United States patent, copy right, trademarks or 

trade secrets; to claims f or personal injury  or damage to property  

caused by  the gross negligence or willf ul misconduct  of  the 

Contractor; to claims cov ered by  other specif ic prov isions of  the 

Contract calling f or damages; or to court costs or attorney ’s f ees 

awarded by  a court in addition to damages af ter litigation based 

on the Contract. The Contractor and the State shall not be liable 

to each other, regardless of  the f orm of  action, f or consequential, 

incidental, indirect, or special damages. This limitation of  liability  

shall not apply  to claims f or inf ringement of  United States patent, 

copy right, trademark, or trade secrets; to claims f or personal 

injury  or damage to property  caused by  the gross negligence or 

willf ul misconduct of  the Contractor; to claims cov ered by  other 

specif ic prov isions of  the Contract calling f or damages; or to 

court costs or attorney ’s f ees awarded by  a court in addition to 

damages af ter litigation based on the Contract.

Can the State clarif y  the appropriate 

Indemnif ication / Limitation of  Liability  prov ision 

applicable to this engagement.  RFP Section 4.5 

Statement of  Liability ; Attachment P - 

Indemnif ication and Attachment K - Indemnity  

each present a dif f erent liability  standard. 

Attachment P - Indemnification provision will remain and 

encompasses various areas of indemnification, some of which, but 

not all, could be calculated against the liability cap stated in RFP 

section 4.5B.  Please see Updated Attachment-K-Pro-Forma-

Contract for revised terms.

36
Page 58, RFP Section 4.1, 

Pay ment and Inv oice Prov isions

NA What are the pay ment terms f or this contract? 

i.e. within how many  day s f rom inv oice receiv ed 

by  the state the pay ment would be made?

Typically thirty (30) days

37

Page 16, RFP Sec tion 1.3.2 

Schedule of  Ev ents

Exhibit 1: Solicitation Schedule - Response to written questions, 

On or About September 4, 2023

October 2, 2023, 1:00 p.m. CST

In order to ensure a compliant and competitiv e 

bid, we are requesting the ability  to submit 

additional questions to the State af ter receiv ing 

the responses f rom the State (Expected on Sept 

4)

The schedule will not be modified.

38

Page 16, RFP Section 1.3.2 

Schedule of  Ev ents

Exhibit 1: Solicitation Schedule - Proposal Due Date and Time

October 2, 2023, 1:00 p.m. CST

The complexity  of  the RFP requirements and 

timef rame f or proposal submission limits v endors 

in prov iding a compliant competitiv e submission. 

Will the State consider extending the proposal 

due date?

The schedule will not be modified.

54
Attachment G Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix AMO.xlsx, F2, 

F11

RFP states requirement f or Training Room but also of f ers the 

option f or v irtual training

Can the v endor elect to conduct all training 

v irtually  and eliminate the need f or a phy sical 

training room?

Yes - virtual training is an option.

55

Page 5-6, Attachment K - 

Indemnity  Sec 13

The Contractor shall be f ully  liable f or the actions of  its agents, 

employ ees, partners, and assigns and shall f ully  indemnif y , 

def end, and hold harmless the Department, and their of f icers, 

agents, and employ ees f rom third party  suits, actions, damages, 

and costs of  ev ery  name and description, including attorney ’s 

f ees to the extent arising f rom or relating to personal injury  and 

damage to real or personal property , caused in whole or in part by  

the negligence or willf ul misconduct of  Contractor, its agents, 

employ ees, partners, or assigns.

Can the State clarif y  the appropriate 

Indemnif ication / Limitation of  Liability  prov ision 

applicable to this engagement.  RFP Section 4.5 

Statement of  Liability ; Attachment P - 

Indemnif ication and Attachment K - Indemnity  

each present a dif f erent liability  standard. 

See above answer to Question 35. 

56

Page 3, Attachment K - Pro 

Forma Serv ices Contract, 

Termination 7B

The Department may  terminate this contract f or any  reason by  

giv ing the Contractor written notice of  such termination no less 

than sixty  (60) day s prior to the date of  termination. 

Can the State conf irm the Termination f or 

Conv enience applicable to this engagement.  

Attachment P - Termination of  Contract prov ides 

30 day s while Attachment K - Section 7b 

prov ides f or 60 day s.  

30 days 

57

Page 2, Attachment P - Terms 

and Conditions

The Department may  cancel this contract unilaterally  at any  time, 

f or any  reason including conv enience, unav ailability  of  f ederal 

f unds, state f unds or both by  giv ing the other party  thirty

(30) calendar day s written notice , and deliv ering notice of  

cancellation either in person or by  certif ied mail, return receipt 

requested, restricted deliv ery . Av ailability  of  f unds will be 

determined at the sole discretion of  the Department.

Can the State conf irm the Termination f or 

Conv enience applicable to this Engagement.  

Attachment P - Termination of  Contract prov ides 

30 day s while Attachment K - Section 7b 

prov ides f or 60 day s.  

30 days 

58

Pages 5-6, Attachment P - 

Indemnif ication Pages 5-6

Indemnif ication

The Contractor agrees to indemnif y , def end, and sav e harmless 

the State, the Department, its of f icers, agents and employ ees 

f rom any  and all damages, losses, claims, liabilities and related 

costs, expenses, including reasonable attorney ’s f ees and 

disbursements awarded against or incurred by  the Department 

arising out of  or as a result of :

Any  claims or losses resulting f rom serv ices rendered by  any  

person, or f irm, perf orming or supply ing serv ices, materials, or 

supplies in connection with the perf ormance of  the contract;

Any  claims or losses to any  person or f irm injured or damaged by  

the erroneous or negligent acts (including without limitation 

disregard of  Federal or State regulations or statutes) of  the 

Contractor, its of f icers or employ ees in the perf ormance of  the 

contract;

Any  claims or losses resulting to any  person or f irm injured or 

damaged by  the Contractor, its of f icers or employ ees by  the 

publication, translation, reproduction, deliv ery , perf ormance, use, 

or disposition of  any  data processed under the contract in a 

manner not authorized by  the contract, or by  Federal or State 

regulations or statutes;

Any  f ailure of  the Contractor, its of f icers or employ ees to 

observ e local, f ederal or State of  Arkansas laws or policies, 

including but not limited to labor laws and minimum wage laws.

The Contractor shall agree to hold the Department harmless and 

to indemnif y  the Department f or any  additional costs of  

alternativ ely  accomplishing the goals of  the contract, as well as 

any  liability , including liability  f or costs or f ees, which the 

Department may  sustain as a result of  the Contractor's or its 

subcontractor’s perf ormance or lack of  perf ormance.

Can the State clarif y  the appropriate 

Indemnif ication / Limitation of  Liability  prov ision 

applicable to this engagement.  RFP Section 4.5 

Statement of  Liability ; Attachment P - 

Indemnif ication and Attachment K - Indemnity  

each present a dif f erent liability  standard. 

See above answer to Question 35. 

59

Page 1, Attachment P -  Terms 

and Conditions, Opening 

Paragraph

Except upon the approv al of  DHS, the terms and conditions set 

out in this section are non-negotiable items and will be transf erred 

to the contract as written. DHS has determined that any  attempt 

by  any  v endor to reserv e the right to alter or amend the terms 

and conditions v ia negotiation, without the approv al of  DHS, is an 

exception to the terms and conditions that will result in rejection of  

the proposal. A statement accepting and agreeing to the terms 

and conditions set out in this section, or to alternate terms and 

conditions upon approv al of  DHS, is required to be submitted with 

the respondent’s proposal.

Can the Department prov ide the procedures to 

negotiate alternate terms prior to the submission 

of  the proposal. 

No alternate terms are negotiated prior to submission of proposals. If 

the state chooses to engage in negotiations, it will do so as outlined 

in RFP section 1.20. 

65

Bidders Library , 2021-

Annual_Statistical_Report.pdf

NA Please, prov ide a searchable data content of  

v olumes f or ev aluating metrics and sizing, i.e. 

this document is an image f ile captured in pdf  

making it v ery  time consuming to extract and 

f ind v olumes, while making it dif f icult not to 

introduce errors. 

The version of the 2021 Annual Statistical Report included in the 

Bidders' Library is identical to the official version published on the 

Arkansas Department of Human Resources website.  See above 

answer to Question 65.

67

Page 7, 1.8 Response 

Documents

1.8.2.d. EO 98-04 Disclosure Form, Attachment P. (See Standard 

Terms and Conditions, #27. Disclosure.)

On page 7 of  the Solicitation document, 

Attachment P is ref erenced as EO 98-04 

Disclosure Form. Attachment I is the Contract 

and Grant Disclosure and Certification Form. 

Can the State prov ide clarif ication on which f orm 

is to be prov ided in the bidder's Technical 

Proposal Packet submission?

 See Section 1.8.d in Addendum 1

68

Page 10, Attachment A 2.1.2 Operations Key  Personnel Pharmacist Lead/Clinical Manager is included in 

the list of  key  personnel f or the operations phase 

in section 2.1.2 of  Attachment A. Role 

descriptions and requirements are included f or all 

of  the other key  personnel identif ied in 

Attachment A, but these details are not included 

f or the Pharmacist Lead/Clinical Manager role. 

Can y ou prov ide a description of  the 

responsibilites and requirements f or this role?

This Lead Pharmacist/Clinical Manager position will manage staff 

pharmacists, certified Technicians and  the Call Center.  The 

Pharmacist Lead/Clinical Manager is expected to participate in 

coordinated meetings with DHS and Vendor.

69
Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix

N/A Does the State of  Arkansas intend to continue to 

hold the License f or FirstDatabank drug f ile or 

would that be the v endors responsibility ?

The State of Arkansas intends to continue to hold the License for 

FirstDatabank drug file.

70

Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix

Staf f ing Call Center Please describe the intended role of  the Certif ied 

Technicans.

The Certified Technicians role is considered the front line of the Call 

Center and is responsible for professionally handling member and 

provider calls, to include research, eligibility questions, claim status, 

prior authorization status and escalate to pharmacists, as needed.

71

Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix

Staf f ing Call Center Please describe the intended role of  the Licensed 

Pharmacists.

Licensed Pharmacists are expected to review Prior Authorization 

requests, assist in the Call Center by speaking to members and 

providers, and assist with other tasks from Key Personnel staff roles 

as needed.

72 Page 1, Attachment A 1.1 General May  key  roles be held by  the same person? (ex. 

RDUR Director and ProDUR Manager)

Key Personnel positions may not be filled by the same staff member.

73
Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix

DUR106 and DUR114 Is the State going to prov ide a Medical Director? 

Or is that the responsibility  of  the v endor?

Requirement DUR106 is referring to the RDUR Lock-in program and 

not the full Arkansas Medicaid program.  Requirement DUR106  is 

modified to remove  #2 "Vendor's approved Medical Director".  

74 Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix

DR28 Please prov ide the ty pe of  indicator required f or 

identif y ing a 340B drug other than ceiling price.

423DN value field of "08 is" required for all MEF enrolled pharmacies.

75 Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix

SM26 Does DHS require a dedicated Call Center staf f ? 

Or is a shared serv ice model acceptable?

Arkansas Medicaid Pharmacy Program requires a dedicated Call 

Center staff.

76 Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix; MO18

"Notif ication to the appropriate state Stakeholder must be 

immediate and tracked through a dashboard report". 

Please describe the content of  the required 

dashboard report.

All reports and or dashboards will be defined and approved by the 

state during the DDI requirements gathering process.  

77

Page 10, 1.12.A Agreement and 

Compliance Form

"Contractor must sign all Agreement and Compliance Pages 

relev ant to each section of  the Bid Solicitation Document. The 

Agreement and Compliance Pages are included in the Technical 

Proposal Packet."

Please clarif y  where the Agreement and 

Compliance Pages are located in the Technical 

Proposal Packet. There was no f orm with that 

name in the packet. Please prov ide these f orms 

if  they  are not in the RFP.

See Agreement and Compliance Pages in the Revised Techincal 

Response Packet posted in Addendum 1.

78
Page 16, 1.32 Schedule of  

Ev ents

The Bid Solicitation Schedule does not include the 

date f or Go-Liv e. Please prov ide the anticipated 

date f or when operations begin.

No, the State will not provide this information.

79

Page 1, Attachment D Technical 

Proposal Packet, Inf ormaton f or 

Ev aluation

"Solution Functionality  - Sy stem Proposal Instructions indicates 

that: In total f or the sections below, the Respondent shall prov ide 

a summary  narrativ e no longer than two hundred (200) pages in 

length including graphics and tables using an 11 point f ont that 

describes the f unctionality  of  their solution."

May  bidders use a smaller f ont size in tables? Vendors need to follow the direction provided.

80

Page 1, Attachment D Technical 

Proposal Packet, Inf ormaton f or 

Ev aluation

"Solution Functionality  - Sy stem Proposal Instructions indicate 

that: In total f or the sections below, the Respondent shall prov ide 

a summary  narrativ e no longer than two hundred (200) pages in 

length including graphics and tables using an 11 point f ont that 

describes the f unctionality  of  their solution."

Is the summary  narrativ e in addition to the 

responses to the Sy stem Proposal requirements 

included in the Technical Proposal Packet?

The summary narrative is included in the limit total of 200 pages. 

81

Page 1, Attachment D Technical 

Proposal Packet, Inf ormaton f or 

Ev aluation

"Solution Functionality  - Sy stem Proposal Instructions indicate 

that: In total f or the sections below, the Respondent shall prov ide 

a summary  narrativ e no longer than two hundred (200) pages in 

length including graphics and tables using an 11 point f ont that 

describes the f unctionality  of  their solution."

Please conf irm that the completed Attachment G 

matrix is not included in the 200 page count.

Confirmed - this is not included.

82

Page 1, Attachment D Technical 

Proposal Packet, Inf ormaton f or 

Ev aluation

"Solution Functionality  - Sy stem Proposal Instructions indicate 

that: f ill out the tabs of  Attachment G - Functional Requirements 

Matrix."

Please clarif y  the nature of  the response that the 

State requires f or the items in the requirements 

matrix. The column where the bidder is to 

describe how its solution meets the requirement 

is v ery  limited in its capacity . Are bidders 

expected to prov ide only  a brief  response?

The response column may be expanded, but a concise answer is 

expected.

83

Page 1, Attachment G - 

Functional Requirements Matrix

The row height in the matrix does not allow 

bidders' f ull response to be seen or printed. Some 

of  the requirement text is cut of f  as well. May  

bidders expand the row height?

Yes
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Page 1, Attachment G - 

Functional Requirements Matrix

The State requires a hard copy  submission of  

this proposal; howev er, in order to print the matrix 

with all columns showing on a page, the 

spreadsheet must be printed at a size that 

renders the cell contents too small to read easily . 

How does the State want bidders to submit their 

response to the matrix - should it be printed to f it 

the columns all on the page; leav ing ev aluators 

to use the electronic copy  of  the matrix to read 

the responses?

The State recommends setting the print area to include only columns 

A-I and selecing a landscape layout with minimal margins.  Please 

also include page numbers on the printed hardcopy submitted.  See 

Updated Attachment G_Requirements 08_29_23 v  7 FINAL for a 

more print-friendly format. 
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Page 3, Attachment D Technical 

Proposal Packet, Inf ormaton f or 

Ev aluation

RFP Section 2.3 Minimum Qualif ications - Business Proposal, C. 

Attachment N – Client History  Form completed and signed.

Attachment N is also requested in B in Corporate 

Inf ormation and Experience. Please clarif y  in 

which of  these sections the f orm should be 

submitted.

Include the completed and signed Attachment N Client History  Form 

as part of the Bidder's Mininmum Qualification document submission.  

For Qualified Bidders, this form will be provided to the evaluation 

team along with the Bidder's Techincal Proposal for evaluation in the 

designated category. Attachment N Client History  Form does not 

count  towards a Bidder's overall page count for their Proposal.     
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Page 10, 1.13 Subcontractors A. Contractor must complete, sign and submit the Proposed 

Subcontractors Form included in the Technical Proposal Packet to 

indicate contractor’s intent to utilize, or to not utilize,  

subcontractors.

The Proposed Subcontractors Form in the 

Technical Proposal Packet does not hav e a 

signature line. Is there another f orm or should 

bidders add a signature line.

See Section 1.13.A in Addendum 1
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Attachment G - Functional 

Requirements Matrix

Are pharmacists required to approv e and deny  

prior authorizations or can other clinical staf f  

(such as CPhTs) approv e prior authorizations 

assuming all state-approv ed prior authorization 

criteria are met.

Prior authorizations requests are performed by Pharmacists.
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Page 2, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC2

Under what situations would the state require 

access to Vendor's sy stems? What access 

would the state request in these situations?

Full system access of the information system managing the state's 

data is required per state determined need, for audit, source data 

verification, log verification, and  incident management.

89

Page 12, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC16

How does a BAA security  incident dif f er f rom a 

security  incident ref erred to in SC16?

The BAA is more strigent in the response times noted than the 

response times noted in SC16. SC16 includes applicable state and 

federal response requirements. Examples, but not limited to (as 

applicable):

HHS definition: "HHS defines a computer security incident as “a 

violation or imminent threat of violation of computer security policies, 

acceptable use policies, or standard computer security practices.” 

https://www.hhs.gov/about/agencies/asa/ocio/cybersecurity/incident-

reporting-policy-incident-management-reference/index.html

CMS defined in SMC Certification Guidance: Section 6, page 51 

"…In addition to the above HIPAA requirements, the state, in turn, 

should immediately report a security or privacy incident or breach..." 

https://www.medicaid.gov/medicaid/data-and-

systems/downloads/smc-certification-guidance.pdf
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Page 13, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC17

Which HIPAA Security  Rule cites the use of  End 

of  Lif e components as being non-compliant?

The requirement is more than HIPAA, though non-compliance will be 

tracked as a HIPAA non-compliance on the Plan of Actions and 

Milestones (POA&M). 

The HHS’  Office for Civil Rights covers the importance of patching in 

its June 2018 cybersecurity newsletter. End of Life Software cannot 

be managed against the HIPAA Risk Management Process and is a 

non-compliance to be remediated or mitigated. 

HIPAA guidance and MARS-E controls:

Vulnerabilities to the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of ePHI 

should be identified through an organization’s risk analyses – 45 

C.F.R. § 164.308(a)(1)(i)(A) – and subjected to HIPAA-compliant risk 

management processes – 45 C.F.R. § 164.308(a)(1)(i)(B).

Patch management is also covered under the security awareness 

and training standard – 45 C.F.R. § 164.308(a)(5)(ii)(B) – protection 

from malicious software – and the evaluation standard – 45 C.F.R. § 

164.308(a)(8).

MARS-E 2.2 (or current version)controls (including but not limited to) 

SA-22 Unsupported System Components, SI-2 Flaw Remediation, CM-

7 (5) Authorized Software/Whitelisting, CM-8 (1) Updates During 

Installations / Removals, and RA-5 Vulnerability Management.
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Page 16, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC23

How of ten will AR make certif ication, audit, and 

incident management requests to the Vendor?

Certification is per CMS requirements for obtaining and maintaining 

Enhanced Funding.

Audit/risk assessment is per requirements of MARS-E current 

version.

Incident Management is dictated by the nature of the incident.

SOC 2 Type 2, of the information system and services provided 

under contract, assessments are annual.

Additional reassessment of any of the above, in whole or part, can 

occour on major system change, incident, or auditor finding.

92
Page 22, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC38

When does the State require approv al of  program 

changes?

State approval is required for all program changes.
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Page 34, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC69

If  Vendor has demonstrated that it is f ollowing 

and met MARS standards why  are weekly  

updates required?

A vendor can only demonstrate MARS-E standards are met through 

continuous monitoring that is demonstrated, documented, and 

accepted by DHS. DHS has established weekly as the cadence of 

the required monitoring. 

94

Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix, Security  

Requirements

Master ID - F1 Can the State prov ide the approv ed standards? See MARS-E (current version) and state published policy 

documentation for guidance except where another federal referenced 

standard is more stigent. See also: 

https://humanservices.arkansas.gov/dhs-policies/
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Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix, Security  

Requirements

Master ID - F12 Can the State prov ide policies and procedures? See MARS-E (current version) and state published policy 

documentation for guidance except where another federal referenced 

standard is more stigent. See also: 

https://humanservices.arkansas.gov/dhs-policies/
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Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix, Security  

Requirements

Master ID - GTS18 Can the State def ine the term "code sets"? For defintion please see: 

Sec. 1171. Definitions https://aspe.hhs.gov/reports/health-insurance-

portability-accountability-act-1996

and

Code Sets https://www.cms.gov/regulations-and-

guidance/administrative-simplification/code-sets
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Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix, Security  

Requirements

Master ID - GTS67 What are the f ederally  mandated requirements? All as required by contract as noted, to include state level and 

federal requirements. Represenative, but not limited to, the current 

version as applicable for all Federal and Arkansas state level 

regulation and guidance as noted in applicable policy documents, 

regulation and law.
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Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix, Security  

Requirements

Master ID - SC55 Will a redacted executiv e summary  meet this 

requirement?
No. The entire, unredacted, unfiltered  Penetration Test, complete 

with all source data is required. Penetration testing methodology will 

be agreed upon per MARS-E (current version) control CA-8 

Guidance. 
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Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix, Security  

Requirements

Master ID - 61 Is a Security /Priv acy  Management Plan the 

same as a CMS Sy stem Security  Plan?

No. A CMS Security Plan references the current version template 

provided by CMS. Sections as applicable, current version required, 

https://www.cms.gov/files/document/acassptemplatev1008012012do

c
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Attachment G - Requirements 

Traceability  Matrix, Security  

Requirements

Master ID - 68 Is the v ulnerability  scans limited to external 

v ulnerability  scans? How of ten will the scanning 

occur?

DHS conducted vulnerability scanning is internal and external. Scans 

will comply with MARS-E current version. Subject to change current 

guidance requires compliance of controls CA-2, CA-5, CM-7, and RA-

5. The interval is not to exceed 72 hours per MARS-E requirements.
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Attachment E - Tab 7. Sy stems 

M&O

The cost per y ear f ormula is missing in row 12 

f or RDUR, ProDUR Support. Cells E12, G12, 

I12, M12, and N12. Please update.

The state will be issuing a corrected version of the Attachment E 

Cost Proposal Template Revision 1.

102 Attachment E - Tab 7. Sy stems 

M&O

The total f ormula is missing in row 12. Cells P12 

and Q12. Please update.

The state will be issuing a corrected version of the Attachment E 

Cost Proposal Template Revision 1.

103 Attachment E - Tab 7. Sy stems 

M&O

The y ellow input area is missing in Year 2 in cells 

D11 and D12.  Please update.

The state will be issuing a corrected version of the Attachment E 

Cost Proposal Template Revision 1.

104
Attachment E - Tab 7. Sy stems 

M&O

The 3000 enhancement and Modif ication Pool 

hours is missing in Year 2 or Cell 13.  Please 

update.

This is not an error, there is not 3000 hours in year two (2) because 

expected to be in DDI period.

105 Attachment E - Tab 6. Facility  

Costs

The DDI Period costs are not being totaled in cell 

C14 or in column K.  Please update.

This column will be removed.  The state will be issuing a corrected 

version of the Attachment E Cost Proposal Template Revision 1.

106
Attachment E - Tab 5. DDI The f ormula in column Z is pointing to incorrect 

columns.  Please update to multiply  columns X 

and Y.

The state will be issuing a corrected version of the Attachment E 

Cost Proposal Template Revision 1.

107
Attachment E - Tab 3. Cost 

Proposal Summary

None of  the categories in the DDI period or 

column C are linked to the supporting 

spreadsheets.  Please update.

This column will be removed.  The state will be issuing a corrected 

version of the Attachment E Cost Proposal Template Revision 1.
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Attachment E - Tab 3. Cost 

Proposal Summary

The f ormulas in column K exclude the DDI period 

since they  begin sum columns D through J.  

Please update to include the DDI period.

This column will be removed.  The state will be issuing a corrected 

version of the Attachment E Cost Proposal Template Revision 1.
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Page 11, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC14

What roles will be assigned and managed by  

State?

The vendor proposed solution will comply with the requirements 

noted in SC14 in compliance with the MARS-E (current version) 

Access Control family.
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Page 14, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC19

What are the status and progress indicator colors 

and their def initions?

Per the requriement and subject to change,"Vendor shall support 

color-coded status and progress indicators as defined by the State." 

Current color indicators are GREEN, YELLOW, RED per Agile Project 

Plan definition.
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Page 14, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC21

What Security  and Priv acy  monitoring criteria, 

thresholds, benchmarks, and alerts with respect 

to an operationalized Sy stems and Serv ices 

env ironment are required?

See MARS-E (current version) for guidance except where another 

referenced standard is more stigent. See also control CM-6 

Implementation Guidance for MARS-E (current version) as the 

implementation reference. Security Technical Implementation Guides 

(STIG) reference structure applies.
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Page 23, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC41

What groups and/or indiv iduals does the State 

require access approv al f or?

Per required need DHS access requests will be approved.

113

Page 24, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC43

Can the State def ine the term "all security " in this 

statement: "These log f iles must contain a 

complete accounting of  all activ ity  f or a giv en 

sy stem, tracking all security , or access request 

and approv al documentation, as required by  the 

most stringent relev ant Federal regulation (CMS, 

NIST, MARS-E (current v ersion)."

Per NIST,   "The protection of information and information systems 

from unauthorized access, use, disclosure, disruption, modification, 

or destruction in order to provide confidentiality, integrity, and 

availability." Represenative, but not limited to, the current version as 

applicable for all Federal and Arkansas state level regulation and 

guidance as noted in applicable policy documents, regulation and 

law.
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Page 30, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC57

Under what situations would the State set and 

modif y  access prof iles?

Representative but not limited to:

 Federal and state requirements. 

Legal investigatory requriement. 

Audit requriement. 

Incident Management. 

Changes to system fuctionality.

115

Page 34, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC70

What constitutes a major sy stem change?  Will 

the State accept an internally  generated report if  

conducted by  a certif ied penetration tester?

Major System Change as defined by CMS in Change Reporting 

Procedures for AE ACA Systems.

Internal penetration testing will NOT be agreed to, MARS-E 

Guidance is for an Independent Third Party to conduct. See also 

MARS-E control CA-8, Guidance, "All parties agree to the rules of 

engagement before the commencement of penetration testing 

scenarios." 
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Page 36, 

040_Sy stem_Compliance_Securit

y _RTM - SC76

What does f ull access mean in this requirement?  

Under what scenarios would f ull access be 

required?

Full system security access of the information system managing the 

state's data is required per state determined need, for audit, source 

data verification, log verification, vulnerability management, inventory 

of systems and components, penetration testing, risk management, 

and  incident management.
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GTS36 General Technical 

Standards

Vendor's claims processing sy stem must prov ide an electronic 

method to process or adjust claims past timely  f illing dates when 

they  are approv ed by  State f or a specif ic Prov ider, without 

turning any  edits of f .

Will edits will be required to be turned of f  when 

adjusting claims?

No - edits will not be turned off, although the State may need and 

request to "override" edits at times..

Instructions
This Response Template must be used for submission of written questions.  All questions should provide the requested information. Those that do not, may not be answered by DHS.  The Vendor may add as many lines as needed.  DHS would 

strongly prefer the Vendor to ask multi-part questions as individual questions on seperate lines.


